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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Creative Offset Printers Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Creative Offset Printers Private
Limited {(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Statement of Profit and Loss, including the Statement of Other Comprehensive income, the
Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, anc
notes to the financiai statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies ang
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”}.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according io the explanations given tc
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 {“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generaily accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2024, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfillad
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. We have obtained all other information
prior to the date of this auditors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon. in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is o read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Page10f 11

Offices) Kolkata, Mumbai, Delhi, Chennai, Bangalore & Ahmedabad & Raipur
Materork Locations: Myderabad, Nagpur




Singhi &I Co.

Chartered Accountants

l..loﬂﬂcontdl

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in india, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities:
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disctosing, as applicable, matters related
o going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatemnent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resufting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant io the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the At
we are aiso responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectivenass of
such controls. Gt 3&:-..\..
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+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 10 the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obfained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statemants that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeabie
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, nctuding any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all refationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of mast significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financiai
year ended March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report untess law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {*the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of india in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which tc the best
of our knowledge and belief were nec for th it; e
g essary ior the purposes of our audit; _} @?Q\@\\\
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{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the

Company sc far as it appears from our examination of those books;

veonsecCONEd,

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

{e) On the basis of the writien representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

{) With respect 1o the adequacy of the internal financial controls with referance to these
financial statemenis of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

{g) With respect to the other matiers fo be included in the Auditors Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 41 to the financial statements:

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iti.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. & The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company fo or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”} during the year, with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoevar by
or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b. The management has represented, that, 1o the best of it's knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any perscns or
entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties") during the year, with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries: and ) @@@?\
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c. Based on such audit procedures, we have considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has
caused them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii)
contain any material mis-statement

eeeesoCOREd.

V. The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year therefore
reporting regarding compliance of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable.

(h} In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has
been paid /provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(i) The Company has used acccunting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been
operated throughout the year for all fransactions recorded in the software and the
audit trail feature has not been tampered with.

For SINGHI & CO.

Chartered Accountants
ZCHLEN  Firm Reg. No. 302049E

S NCRﬁ@‘%’; Bi ’i i’; Si .
s -/ imal Kumar Sipani
e
Place: Noida (Delhi — NCR) g/ Partnar
Date: May 21, 2024 Membership No. 088926

UDIN: 24088926BKELXS1491

Page S of 11



- Singhi &7 Co.

Chartered Accountants

veennssCONtd.

Annexure ‘A’ to Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to members of Creative
Offset Printer Private Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2024 (Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date on the other legal
and reguiatory requirements)

(i) (&) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment and right of use
assets.

(B} The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particuiars of intangible
assets

{b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant
and equipment by which property, plant and equipment are verified in every year,
~which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and
nature of its properly, plant and equipment. In accordance with this programme,
property, plant and equipments were physically verified during the year and no
material discrepancies was found.

{c) The title deeds of immovable properiy appearing in the financial statements is held in
the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of
use assets) and intangible assets during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(i){d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(e} According to information and explanations given by the management, no proceedings
have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(1)(e) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(ii} a. The management has conducted physical verification of inventories during the
year at reasonable interval and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in
the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

b. The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits during the year in excess
of five crores rupees, in aggregate, from a bank on the basis of security of curreat
assets. However, the Company does not require to submit any statement with the
Bank regarding current assets as per agreed terms between the Company and Bank.

{iii) During the year, the Company has not made any investment in firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties. The Company has not provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during
the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iii} of the Order are not applicable o
the Company.
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{iv) The Company has no transaction with respect to loan, investment, guarantee and

security covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the
year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

vereeesCONEd.

V) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed 1o be
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Companies (Accepiance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 {as amended) during the year.
Therefore, provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable o the Company.

{vi) The mainienance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central
Government under the section 148 (1) of the Act read with Companies (Cost Records
and Audit) Rules, 2014 for the product manufactured by the Company. Therefore,
provisions of clause 3{vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vii) a. According to the records of the Company examined by us, the Company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed statufory dues including Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Empioyees State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax,
Duty of customs, Duty of excise, Value Added tax, Cess and other statutory dues as
applicable, with the approgriate authorities except delay in depositing in some cases,
There were no undisputed outstanding statutory dues as at the year end for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a)
on account of any dispute.

{viii)  According to the information and explanation given to us, there were no transactions
which have not recorded in the books of account, have been surrendered or
disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) during the year. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company

{ix) a. The Company has not defauited in repayment of loan and in the payment of interest
thereon during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order are
not applicabie to the Company.

b. According to information and explanations given by the management, the Company
is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

c. Based on the books of account examined by us, term loan was applied for the
purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d. According to the information and explanations given fo us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds raised on shori-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the Company.
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e. The Company has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates. Therefore, the

provisions of clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable tc the Company.

veesnscCOREd.

(x) a. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial pubiic offer or further public
offer (inciuding debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3{x}(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b. The Company has not made any private placement or preferential aliotment of
share or fully or parily convertible debenture during the year thersfore provision of
the clause 3(x}(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company

{(xi) a. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial siatemenits and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the
Company or on the Company noticed or reported during the year nor have we been
informed of any such case by the management.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Ceniral Government.

C. As reported 1o us by the management, there are no whistle-biower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xi)y In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3{xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xdii} As per records of the Company examined by us, transactions with the related parties
are in compliance with sectior 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 whers
applicable and details for the same have been disclosed in the financial statements
as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

{xiv) a. In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit
sysiem commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

b. We have considered internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the
period under audit.

{xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion the
Company has not entered info any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with them curing the year hence provision of saction 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions
of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xvi} a. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(a) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b. In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause

3{xvi}(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
(b) PP pany ;@.\_
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c. In our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in
the reguiations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

d. According to the representations given by the management, there is no CIC as part of
the Group.

(xviiy The Company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 292.25 Lakhs in the current year and
Rs.243.48 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

{xviii) There has been no resignation of statutory auditor during the year. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xviii} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xix}  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial asseis and
payment of financial Habilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our atiention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the fuiure viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all ligbilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

{xx)  The Company is not required to spent any amount under section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 towards Corporate Social Responsibility. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3{xx} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The Company does not have subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(xxi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Singhi & CO.

m Chartered Accountants
,_fm Firm Reg. No. 302049E

o [\
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W oS imal Kumar Sipani
Place: Noida {Delhi ~NCR) N/ Partner
Date: May 21, 2024 Membership No. 088926

UDIN: 24088926BKELXS1491
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Annexure B to Independent Auditor's Repori of even date to the members of
Creative Offset Printers Private Limited on the financiai statemenis for the vyear
ended March 31, 2024 (Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of our report on the other legal
and regulatory requirements)

We have audiied the internal financial conirols with reference to financial statements of
Creative Offset Printer Private Limited (the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in coniunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over the financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issusd by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibiliies include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companes Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chariered Acccuntants
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial stataments
included obtaining an understanding of Internal Financial Controls with referance to financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements.
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Meaning of internal Financial Controls with reference to financial siatements
A Company's Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial siatements is a process
designed 1o provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s infernal financial control with reference to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; {(2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary {0 permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

reeeescCOnitd.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial
statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financiat controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
However, same needs to be further strengthened.

For Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accouniants
%, Firm Reg. No. 302049E

Bimél Kﬂmar Sipani
Date: May 21, 2024 Partner

Place: Noida (Delhi — NCR) Membership No. 088926
UDIN: 24088926BKELXS1491
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CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

integral part of these Financiat Statements

As per our Report of even date attached
Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 302049€

i
Bimat Kumar Sipani
Pariner
Membership No. 08528

Place : Noda
Date : May 21, 2024

(INR Lakhs}
Particulars Note - As 3t March 31, 2024 - | As at Mareh 31, 2023
Non-Current Assets PR
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 T 281823 245355
Right of Use {leased assets) 4 . 1,048.86 33885
Capitat Work-in-Progress 4 R 5 & 1 -
Intangibie Assets 5 086 154
Financial Assets © .
QOther Financial Assets 6 L 2877 23.78
Other Non-Current Assels 7 S gA4 35.09
1 3,901.27 2,894.28
Current assets o
Inventories 8 B37.81 87252
financial Assets : SR
Trade Receivables ] T ‘_65'.?.93 47241
Cash and Cash Fquivalents 20 3.52 377
Other Bank Balances 1% ar -
Loans 12 5.69 538
Current Tax Assets {Net) (16,13 1326
Qther Current Assels i3 3104 6541
.- 1,560.90 1,236.75
YOTAL - 5,462.3F 4,131.63
EQUATY AND LIABILITIES SO
Equity R
Equity Shere capital 14 - B223 66.78
Grher Equity i3 S 136275 1,052,680
Tl LA44.98 1,119.38
Liabilities L
Non Current Liahilities
Financial Liabilities
{i} Borrowings 15 927.79 108385
{#} Lesse Lianility 17 725.98 -
{itt} Other Financial Liabilitias - -
Provisions 3 o 4182 40403
Deferred Tax liabilities {Net) 19 .- BL5L 13450
ther Non-Current Liabilizies 20 288 -
- 1,766.06 1,268.17
Current Liabilities ’
Financial Liabilities
{i] Borrowings 21 - 1,689.50 §51.83
{ii) Trade Payebles 22 '
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 4238 4051
enterprises; and
total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micre 676.48 41642
enterprises end smaii enterprizes.
{iii} Lease Liability 17 7159 -
{iv} Other Financist Uabilitias 23 498.14 197.40
Other Current Lizbilitias 24 40,42 9487
Provisions 25 271 2,48
238113 1,743.48
TOTAL 5,462,127 4,131.03
The accompanying significant accounting policies & notes are an Ito48

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

DN - 00040801

.G, Nanmﬁ’@?’—

Director
DIN - 00023526

Rohit Kranna
Biracter
DI 61843380
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Fvargiya
Birector P
DN 0s41E

W bl

Bkshay Kahariz

Birector
DN 1 07289528




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

part of these Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date attached
Singhi & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 302049&

” 3
Bimai Kumar Sipani
Partner

Membership No. 088925

Place : Noida
Date : May 21, 2024

{INE Lakhs)
[Particulars . Lo Note - | For the year ended E For the year ended
S e T S March 31,2028 0 - March 31,2023
{REVENUE L
Revenue from operations 26 o+ 3,975.54 3,414.91
Cther income 27 728 5.50
Total Revenue . 3,982.82 3,420.41
EXPENSES O
Cost of materials consumed 28 S 2,208.74 2,036.93
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 29 L3396 {72.31)
Employee benefits expense 30 T T28.08 598.99
Finance costs 31 S 225.54 196.45
Degreciation and amortization expense 32 : 262.33 189.68
Other expenses 33 - 1,078.78 503.83
Total Expenses 00 4,532.40 3,852.97
Profit/{Loss) before tax <. (554.58) {432.56)
Tax expense: RIS
Deferred tax 15 S T (73.02) 77.67
Profit/{Loss) for the year after tax T {AB).56) {510.23)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A. Other Comprehensive income not to be recilassified to profit and loss
in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement of gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans ‘032 1.38
Income tax effect {0.03) {0.40)
Other Comprehensive Income/f{Loss) for the year, net of tax - 0.09 .98
TOTAL COMPREMENSIVE INCOME/{1.OS5]} FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX - (481.47) {509.25}
Earnings per share for profit attributable to eguity shareholders e
Basic EPS Rs, 34 - {61.31) {98.68)
Diluted EPS Rs. 34 {61.31) {98.68)
The accompanying significant accounting policies & notes are an integrat 1to 46

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Saket Kanoria
Chairman
DIN : 00040801

S.G
Director
DIN : 00023528

@Mﬁ/

Rohit Khanna
Director
DN : 01843360

Directer
DIN 07283523




CREATIVE QFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Interest on income Tax Refund

Bad dub

{RaversailjCreaton of provision for Eageamed Cre

Eimance costy

iPrefich en 1aie o investiment Broperry
Cparating brofit before working capital change:

Change in opeRing assats snd Kabilitas:

i3 in trkhs)
For the year anded
B ERH B - - - March 32, 2025
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIEY
Prafit/{Los) batore income tax: {432.56)
Prefitbafors incomes tax {232,861}
90 A0 FMArTHATOn expense 189.58
o on Sisposel of property, plsat and euinment/Sistarded &34
irzerest on Bank Fived Depoit {544

S Decrease in rrade (52883
{ineTease/Decreass in inantoriay {17273}
insreasefideraase) in trade payasiss {549.39}
{tnereasel/decrease o ozher financial ascetg 1367}
facrasself decrente in othey {itent dssats 8023
intreases{decreas s 424
increasel/decrease -
ncrease/iderresie) in oher corrent Sadilities (37,32}

Carsh genaratnd from opecations (763,48}

Lesz Imcomae raes suid £5.50)/

Aat cash nflow from oparating actvices {774.98Y

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Pravurement of srogerty, Siant and equiprmen ¢ of use ALSRt, fntanginke i745.50!
Asset, Investment progerty and Capitat work i Dogens

Proceads frodn sxie of investrment proparty e 9739
Proceeds from mals of property, plant and equipment & Capitai Wip 10884 3475
Nat Movementin Fixed Geaotts with banic - {073} .01
10:ans to employeas {0.313 13.78)
Interest ceceive on Bank Ficed Dendsits 858

JNet cazh outflow from lnissting sctivities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACHTVITIES:
Sroteeds fro;
Proceeds fram Non-Curte
Aepgymentof Non-Turren: Ba
et Proceeds/iRepoyment}
Fayment of Lease L

+isgues of oh

o tamram 1520.63)

The Jecompanying sighiitant aotounting foiites & nates ave an ntegeal part of thene
imanzial Statementg

A5 gt our Repurt of 2vien date attached

Sighi 8. Co.

Thartered Accountants

e

Eimat Kurnse 3z
Partner
Membersain No. (8I5IE

Plade  Noida
Dite s Mav 21, 2024

Dirgctor
DherO01352E

$.5, Mg L 2

nTarest B¥g {1586.25)
et cash Inflow {outflow) from fasnding activides Aztea L.390.66
Kelingragne 3t} in £ a5h equivaienls {025 [ER--H
Cash 3rd Cath Enuivatencs a £ the year 377 833
Cash and Caoh Equivaients ot end of the year 352 317
of cash and cask per tha cash Sow
Cash and £3sh dqulvalents 55 per a%ove somprise of tre foifn ;
in Currers aczount { Cach in hand 352 3.77
Balances par stetamant of oh Rows 352 377
Note: Movement in fiabilities cover under financlal activitles is 2s undar:
Pargiaslars As at March Cashr flows. As xt Masch 3,
31 2023 Moument Neon-cash movement 2823
NpR-cureent borrowings 1.388.52 113279
Cirrent Somowings 855.8% - =550
Leass Liabiitias - 309191 7E7.42
interest euzence 228.54 -
Particulsrs As at March Cosh Aows As at March 31,
31,2022 Haor-cash mivement: 023
Nor-carnent sorewin, 1.566.59 (803.00) - 138558
Lurrent borrowings 20.78 675.41 - 55288
Interest exoanse : 12138358 19645 .
Hote: The above cash i has boar ¢ “lngirect Mathod” 25 parmitted undes tnd AS 7

For and on behait of Soand of Directors

LN 1 05416872




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

A Equ;ty Share Capzta!

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

{Rs in Lakhs)

i : Ba!ance at the Changes in Equity share- Baiance at the end of
Particulna;.'s. E Begmmng of the. year “capltal duting the year. {7 the vear:’
March 31 2023*
Numbers 4,18,405 2,459,358 6,67,803
Amount in lakhs 41.84 24.94 66.78
March 31, 2024
Numbers 6,67,803 1,54,508 8,22,311
Amount in fakhs 66.78 15.45 82.23
*There are no changes in other equity due to prior period errors,
B Other Equity :
L T Reserwes and Sutp!us
S Particula g Securataes?remium Retamed Earnings Yot
ey Lericharss C peserve: (Aora
As at April 1 ,2022% 1,266.71 {1,088.92) 177.79
Fresh issue of Equity Shares 1,384.06 1,384.06
Profit for the year {510.23) {510.23}
Cther comprehensive income 0.98 .98
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,384.06 {509.25) 874.81
As at March 31, 2023* 2,650.77 {1,598.17) 1,052.60
As at Aprit 1,2023 2,650.77 {1,598.17) 1,052.60
Fresh issue of Equity Shares 791.62 791.62
Profit for the year {481.56) {481.56}
Other comprehensive income 0.08 0.0%
Total comprehensive income for the year {481.47) {481.47)
Dividends -

As at March 31, 2024 3,442.39 {2,079.64) 1,362.75

*There are no changes in other equity due to prior period errors.

As per our Report of even date atiached

Singhi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302048E L
Saket Kanoria
Chairman

DIN : 00040801

Bimal Kumar Sipani
Partner
Membership No. 088926

S.G. N
Director
DIN : 00023526

Place : Noida (Delhi NCR}
Date : 21/05/2024

L=

o i\“l}‘\, /

ohit Khanna
Director
DIN : 01843360

%

Ly

DIN : 09416872

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Mk fia

Akshay Kanoria
Birector
DIN : 07289528




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

1

23

2

N

{a}

iy

{b}
i)

{ii}

Corporate information

Creative Offset Printers Private Limited {"The Company”} {CIN No.U22311D12002PTC118176) was incorporated on July 12, 2002 under the
provisicns of the Companies Act, 1956 having registered office situazed at 811-812, DLF Tower A, Jasola District Centre, New Delhi-110025 |
The Company has became subsidiary of TCPL Packaging Limited w.e.f. &th DeC’2021.

The Company is in the business of manufacturing of packaging products in its plant located at Greater Noida , Uttar Pradesh.

The Board of Directors have approved the financial statements for the year ended 3ist March, 2024 and issued the same on 21st May,
2024,

Material Accounting Palicies

8asis of preparation

The Company has zdopted Indian Accounting Standards {ind AS) notfied under the Companies {indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015
{55 amended) from the financial year 2021-2022 upon becoming subsidiary of 3 listed enticy TCPL Packaging timited w.e.f December 04,
2021,

The financial statements are presentad in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest iakhs, except when stated otherwise.

The financial statements have been prepared on & historical cost basis, except for the following assets and fiabilities which have been
measured at fair value:

- Defined Berefit Plans

- Loans 2t amortised cost

Summary of material accounting policies
Revenue recognition

in accordance with indian Accounting Standard 115 (Ind AS 115) -'Revenue from contracts with customers’. Under this ind- AS, revenue forl
products or services is recognized on sausfaction of performance obligation under the contract with the customer. The contractual prices!
are recogrised 8s revenue in proporticn te the performance obligations . Revenue is netted of alf the returns, short payments by thel
Lusomers.

Intesest income
mnterest ingeme from 3 fingncial ssset is recognised using applicable interest rate and the tme invoived .

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and lizbiiites are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. Thel
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 2re those that are enacted or substantively enactad, at the reporting date,

Current Income tax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensivel
Incemme or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in orrelation to the underlying transaction either in QG or diractly in equity.

Management periocically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subjeet to interpretation and establishes provisions where agpropriate.

Defereed tax

Deferred tax Is provided using the Balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax basas of assets and liabilities and their}
carrying amounts for financial reperting purposes 2t the reporting date.

Deferred tax Habilities are recognised for 2l taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assats are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused 1ax credits and any unusad tax
fosses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxakle profit will be availabie against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused rax losses can be utifised.

The carrying amount of defarred tax assets s reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the axtent that it 1 1o fonger probable that
sufficient taxable orofit will be availabie to alfow all or part of the deferred tax asset to ba utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed 31 each reporting date and are recognised 1o the extent that it has become probable thar future taxable grofits wilf allow thel
deferred rax asset 16 be recovered.

Deferred tex assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right axists 1o set off current tax assets 3gainst current tax
liabilizies and the deferred axes relate w the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

(e}

i}

i)

{d)

{e}

{8}

Foreign currency transiation

Functional and presentation currency
Izems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured in indian Rupee which is functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are trznslated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction. Foreign
exchange gaim and loss resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets ard flabilities foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. Thay are deferred in other ecuity if they -efate to qualifying|
cash flow hedges.

Foreign exchange differences arising on borrowings other than above are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs and are presented|
in the statement of profit and loss , Alf other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profi: and lass on a ne:
basis within other gains/{icsses).

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair|
valus was determined. Translation differances on assets and habilities carried at fair value are reported as part of tha fair value gain or loss.

Leases

The company ientifies whether any transaction is a leass or have any embedded iease component. The determination of whether an|
arrangement is a iease s based on the substance of the agreement. The agreement is 2 lease if fulfilment of it is dependent on the us2 of a
specific 2sset{s) and the arrangement conveys 2 right to use the 2sset or assets, even if the right is not explicitly specified in an agreement.
As 8 lessor: Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer Srom the Company|
1o the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance ieases are recorded as receivables . Finance lease income is aliocated to accounting
pericds 1o reflect 2 constant periodic rmte of retum on the net investment outstanding in respect of the fease.

lease income from operating leases where the company is a lessor is recognised in income on 3 straighl-line basis over the lease term
unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cosy
increases. The respective feased assets are includad in the balance sheet based on their nature.

As 3 lessee: in case the company has entered in any agreement 25 3 Jessee, it recognises the right to use of the asset conferred under the
arrangement as “Right of Use “as part of Property, Plant & equipment. The discounted cash flows of the all the lease considerations|
including lease premium ,which company expects to pay during entire non-canceliable period of lease arrangement is taken zs initial
recognition of asset with corresponding amount as ‘Jease liabilities. Lease Habilities and Right of use is remeasured or impaired annualiy]
bzsed on available varizbles,

The assets ‘right of use’ are depreciatad using straight line methed over the lease term. Similary interest as per ircremental rate o
bofrewing is charged to lease liabilities. Lease payments are appropriated towards tha jease liabilities.

Leases ransactions of low value 2nd of shor duration are rot recognised and thus rentals paid are charged off |
Lease liabilities are ciassified as non-current and current based on their due dates of discharging.

Impairment of non financiat assets

The Company assesses, 3t each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an assez may be impaired. If any indication exists, o
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An zsset’s receverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s {CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. IWhen it is nod
possible 10 estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU t= which
the asser balongs], When the carrying amount of 2n asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considersd impaired and is)
written down to its recoverabie armount.

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 10 their present value using @ pre-tax discount rate that reflects]
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Cash and cash gquivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, bank balances and short term deposits in kanks.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs includes , expeses incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition and are accounted for as follows:

Raw materizls, Consumables Stores: Raw materials /Consymables Stores are valued af cost after providing fo- ¢ost of obsolesence /
depietion. Cost is determined on first in, fitst out basis.

Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materisls and lzbour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based]
oh the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable vaiue is the estmated selfing price in the ordinary course of business, Joss estirmated costs of compiation and the estimated
Costs necessary 10 make the szle.




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

i)
0]

B

{1]

=

{2)

{t

=

@

k)

Finandial Assets/ Uabfﬁties:
Fitancial assets
initiol recognition and megsurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value |
Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
- Dest instruments atf amortised cost
- Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCH)
- Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Impairment of financle! assets
The company assesses on & forward looking basis the expected ¢redit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and “VOCI
debt instruments. The impairment methodelogy applied depends on whether there has been a significant inerease in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applias the simplified aporoach permitted by Ing AS 109 financial instruments, which reuires
expected #fetime losses to be recognised fram initial recognition ef the receivables.

Financial iabilties

Initigl recognition and megsurement

Ali financia! liabilities are recognised itially at fair value,

All financial abilities are recognised initially 21 fair value and, in the case of joars and borrowings and payables, nes of directly attributable
£ransaclion costs.

The Cermpany's financial fisbiities include trade and other payables, loans and horrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee

Subsequent megsurement
The measurement of financial lizbilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Babilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial fizbilities are measured at fair value through profit or loss .

ioans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest
Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabifities are derecognised as well as through the EIR|
ammortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taléng into atcount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees of costs that afe matenial and an|
integral part of the £IR. The £iR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Property, piant and equipment
Freehold fand is carried at historical cost. &l other items of property, plant and eguipment are stated at historical cost less recoverabie tax
and accumulated depreciztion. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the items.

Subsequant costs are included in the zsset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate as<et, as appropriate, only when it is probab e that|
future econpmic benefits associated with the item will flow ta the company and the cost of the item can be measured relizbly. Al other|
repaivs and maintenance are charged 1o prefit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated usefui lives and residual value :
Bepreciation is calculated using the straight-ine method 10 allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimared usefu lives.

The useful lives have beer taken as prescribed in Schedule H to the Companies Act, 2013 except i case of plant and machinery, in which
case it has been considered 1o be 15 vears,

The residual value is not more than $% of the original cost of the asset. The assets’ residual veives and useful fives are reviewed, and|
adjusted if approgriate, at the end of each reporting periad.
Gaing and fosses on disposais are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. Thase are included in profit or joss.

intangible assets
Computer software
Acquired computer softwars it recorded as intangible assets and 2mortised in 3-8 years based on straight-line method.

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised 2s an expense as incurred.

¥rade and other payables
These amounts represent Habilities for gonds and services provided to the company pricr to the end of financiat year which are unpaid. The!

amounis are unsecured. Trade and other payebies are presented as current liabilities uniess payment is not due within 12 months after thel
reporting peried.




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{f} Borrowing costs
General and specific barrowing costs, that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of & gualifying asset, are capitalised]
till the period the asse? is available for use |
Crher Borrowing osIs are expensed in the period in whick they are incurred.

{m} Provisions
General
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obiigation {legal or constructive) 35 2 result of 2 past event and it is probable
that an cutflow of rescurces will be required 1o sette the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligaticn.

if the effect of the time value of monay is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that refleces, when approgriate,
the risks specific to the habiity, When discounting is used, the intrease in the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognised as a finance
COSsT.

{n} Employee benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits- The contractuat amaount of short term employee benefits expacted to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employees render the services.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defired Conwribution Plans- A defined contrinution plan is & post-employment tenefit plen under which the Company pays specified]
conributions 1o Provident Fund snd Pension Scheme authorities. The Company makes specified monthiy contributions towards Provident
fund and Pension Scheme. The Company's contribution is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the peried in;
which the employee renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plans- The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed specied pericd of service with the Company]
as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 2672, at the time of resignationfretirement from the employment, Annual gratuity grovision is made
based on an acturiat valuazion.

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans in respect of post-employment is charged to the Other Comprehensive income.

{o) Earning per share
Basic earning per share
Sasic earning per share is calculated by dividing:
- the profit attributabie to owners of the company
- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financiai year.
Diluted garnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
- the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential equity
- the weighted aversge number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive:
scotential equity shares.

{p} Provisions and Contingent Liabilities/Assets :
rovisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of 2 past event, itis probable that an outflow of rescurces
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the cbligaticn and a reliable estimate ¢an be made of the amount of the obligetion.
Pravisions are measured at the bast estimare of the expenditure required 1o settle the prasent obiigation at the Balance Sheet date.
Contingent liahilities are disclosed when there is 2 possible obiigation srising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmad only
by the occurrence or non-accurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent
g£ains are not recognised or accounted.

{5} {m} Recent Accounting Prorouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA”} notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under The Companies {indian
Accounting Stancards} Rules as fssued from time 1o time, During the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards
cr amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.

3 Critical Estimations and Judgements
3.

H

The preparation of fingncial statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management aiso needs to exercise judgement in applying the company's accounting policies.

The estimates and judgements Involves a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more Bkely 1o be materiallyl
adjusted due to estimates and zssumptions turring out to be different than those originally assessed. Detatied information about each of
these estimates and judgements is included in refevant notes together wit
item in the financial statements.

information about the basis of calcuiaticn for each affected line|

Critical estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

- Estimated usefudl life of property, piant and equipment and intangible asset

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation

- Recognition of revenus

- Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried farward tax lossas

- Imgairment of trade receivables shd other financial assets

- Estirmatian of provision for employee benefit Gability

Estimates and judgemen:s sre continually evalusted, They are based on historical experience 2nd other factors, including expectations of}
future events that may have a financial impact on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

w s/

e



CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

4 Proparty; Plant & Equipmant’s Right to LS ASsar L Inlestment RGO & Canitdl Work it progress’

{Rs ins Lakhs)|

Cost/Deemed Cost

As on 01-04-2022 682.12 1317.01 19831 180.18 1395 44,63 - 2,48155 3850 26019 . - 260.1%

Additions 133.17 901,33 242 - 16.82 1668 - 1,120.44 - 108,27 - - 108.27
isposals/Capitafised - £60.52) {9.551 - {70.31} {96.50) - - -

As on 33-03-2023 36529 2,157.72 200.53 90.49 156.34 61.31 - 3,531.68 - 26846 - - 368.46 -
As on 01-04-2623 865.29 2,137.72 200.33 90.49 i56.34 51.33 - 353188 - 36246 - - 368.46

Additions ' 55.59 38318 2502 52.41 3225 13.73 52.97 £45.57 - - TE185 61.95 812,90 111
Bisposals/Capitalised - i352.28) 4.9 £14.59) - {37185} {57 073 - - {s2.07)

As on 31-02-2023 53119 2,188,651 225.55 148.93 188.59 60.38 52.07| 3,805.40 - 3il3g 7£Q.95 63.951 1,134.29 111
Accumulated Depredation M h

As on 02-04-2022 4z.35 569.50 53.85 8L77 55.88 28,73 - 888.85 - 545 - - 25.45

Depreciation for the year 2180 11856 18.03 4.31 i5.46 6.73 - 18470 - 3.06 . - 3.06
Beductions\Adjustments during S . _

the pericd - {25.73} 9.55) - {35.42}] - - -

As on 31-03-2023 63.95 6233 37.50 76,32 1132 36.46 - 1038.14 - 28351 - - 28.51

As an 01012923 63.95 £62.33 87.20 75.3% 13112 3645 - 103812 - 2551 - - 28.51

Bepreciation for the year 28.6% 135.38 i8.72 .04 24.98 1153 154 21833 - 422 3753 3.15 46.92
D.equct!nns\;kd;us(men:s during ~ 124272} : @72 388 i 1261.30) R

the period

As on 31-02-2024 5193 554.99 306.52 75.71 226.20 34.13 1ed 991.37 - 273 27.53 5.16 75.43

Ret Carrying value as on 31-03-

2024 33%.20 1.533.63 11893 73.22 6249 26.33 60.43] 2,314.23 - 27866 71341 56.78| 1,048.85 113
et Carrying value as on 31-03-

2023 80Z.34 1.495.40 112.63 1130 4522 2485 - 2493.54 - 339.95 - - 339.95

For Assats pledged and Hypothecated against berrowings, refer nate no 16 & 21

Capital Work-in- Progress Ageing Schedud

31st Marck 2024
AP Armount in CWIP for a period of Totat
Less Than Lvear] 52 year 2-3year | Marathan 3year Tatal
Projects in Progress iit - - - 1.11
_ Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
31st March 2023
CWIP Amountin CWIP for a period of Total
Less Than 1year| i-2year Z-3 year Mare than 3 year Total
. Projects in Progress - - - - -
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 3%, 2024
S.ntangible Assets 0T T
{Rs in Lakhs)
Sl Particulars s e L s e Softwares
Cost/Deemed Cost
As on 01-04-2022 14,42
Additions 207
IDisposais/Capitalised
As on 31-03-2023 16.49
As on 01-04-2023 16.45
Additions -
{Disposals/Capitalised -
As on 31-03-2624 16.4%
Accumulated Depreciation
As on 01-04-2022 13,23
{Depreciation for the year 1.32
§Deducticns\Ad;‘u5tments during the period -
As on 31-03-2023 14.55
As on §01-04-2023 14,55
Depreciation for the year 1.08
Deductions\Adjustments during the period -
As on 31-03-2024 15.63
Net Carrying vajue as on 31-03-2024 ’ 0.86
ghet Carrying value as on 31-03-2023 1.94




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

6  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS {ENR takhs}
Particulars. R T o1 March 31, 2024 - | March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated T
Security Deposits 26.77 15.72
Deposits with banks {Maturity more than 12 months)* e 8.04

Total 2677 23.76

7 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS {INR Lakhs)

Particulars = .- ST - March 31, 2024 | March 33, 2023
Capitat Advances .1486 35.09

Prepaid Expenses L 4,58 -

Total T A 35.09

8 ENVENTORIES {INR Lakhs)

‘Particulars . March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
{Valued at lower of Cost and Net Realisable value) i T :
Raw materials - 508,75 355.69
Work-in-progress 122.50 111.87
Finished goods S 116,56 161.16
Stores and spares T 89.9% 43.80
Total 837.81 672.52
Iaventories are Hypothecated to secure borrowings, refer note no 16 & 21.

9  TRADE RECEIVABLES {INR Lakhs)
Particulars Y ‘{1’ March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Unsecrured LU
Trade Receivables, considered good . © - 857.83 472.43%
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk S . -
Trade receivabies, credit impaired - 7.23 9.76

7 66516 482.17

Less:Provision for Expected Credit Losses 7.23 9.76
7.23 9.76

Total 657.93 472.41

Trade Receivables are Hypothecated to secure borrowings, refer note no 16 & 21.

For Trade Receivables Ageing is as follows:
As at March 31, 2024

T

Particulars

Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment

iNot Due iLess than 6 months 6 months -1 year

1-2 Years:2-3 years

‘More than 3 years iTotal

{i} Undisputed Trade recelvables — considered good 28545

770t

657.93

{ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant incresse in credit risk

293,17 ¢

6.3t}

(iff) Undispured Trade Recaivables — credit impaired

{iv] Disputed Trade Receivables ~ considered good

(v} Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant intrease in credit risk

{vl} Disputed Trade Recelvables ~ cradit impaired | -

.3




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

" INOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Quistanding for following periods from due date of

payrm2nt

Not Dug |Less than 6 months |6 months -1 year |1-2 Yearsi2-3years  {More than 3 vears |Total
i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 330.28 13655 518 - 47141
ii} Undisputed Trade Recaivables ~ which have significant increase In eredit risk - - -
iii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credi impaired 203 i3 3.75

v} Disputed Trade Receivables — which hava significant increase in cradit sk

{
{
{
{iv} Disputad Trade Receivables — considered good
{
{

vij Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks:

(INR Lakhs)

March 31, 2023

12 LOANS

- On current accounts 3.59
Cash on hand 0.18
3.77
i1 OTHER BANK BALANCES {INR Lakhs)
i SR e S S e e R D e A R March31, 2023
Deposits with banks (Maturity between 3 months to 12 months) -
{INR Lakhs)}
Parti , March 31, 2023
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Loans / Advances to Employees 5.38
Total 5.38
13 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS {(INR Lakhs)
March 31, 2023
Advances other than Capital advances
- Advances to suppliers {Other than capital) 39.29
Others
- Prepaid expenses 1.16
- Balances with Government Authorifies 23.71
- Other current assets 5.25
- Other Recoverable considered doubtful 4.44
Less:Provision for Doubtful Debts (4.44

31.04

69.41




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

14 SHARE CAPITAL

i, Equity Share Capital {iNR Lakhs}

Particulars 77T Ll e L e Authorised Capltal. | Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up

T T SR e S T Number [ Amount [ - Rumber - 1% Amount
As at March 31,2022 37,50,000 375.00 4,118,405 41.84
Increase during the year B - 2,458,398 24.54
As at March 31, 2023 37,50,000 375.00 6,67,803 66.78
increzse during the year - - 1,54,508 15.45
As at March 31, 2024 37,50,000 375.00 8,22,311 B2.23

Equity shares issued without payment being received in cash or as fully paid up bonus shares in a period of five years imnmediataly
preceding the date as at which the balance sheet is prepared : Nil { P.Y. Nil j

iL.Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one ¢lass of equity shares having par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to
one vote per share, The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liguidation of the company, the holders of equity shares wili be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
company, after distribution of zli preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held
by the sharenolders.

iii.Reconciliation of Issued Capital
. INR Lakhs)
SRR : S ' - St L e Namber | Amount

Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

As at March 31,2022 4,18,405 41.84
issued during the year 2,458,398 24.94
As at March 31, 2023 6,67,803 66.78
tssued during the year 1,54,508 15.45
As at March 31, 2024 8,22,311 82.23

iv. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Nome o theshareholder - I E L N

T R e T T e T e A e -~ Number" % holding | - Number " .75 holding - -

TCPL Packaging Limited (Holding Company) 8,22,310 100.00 5,85,403 87.66

Rohit Khanna - - 43,800 6.55

Gazal Dhillon - - 38,600 5.78

Totat 8,22,310 100.00 6,67,803 100.00

v. Shareholding of promoters

_ o o : '-'A:i_atMarch'31:,2924 RS B As at March 31, 2023

NameofthePromoters .~ .~ .~ STl Number of. % of Total |- % Change _Number of - %% of Total Shj. - :f (fhan:g

S T o » - f - .shares | Shares. ] duringthe year|- " Shares ot.1ota Shares;. :_m:gt N
. : E Bekvidil ee : . year -

TCPL Packaging Limited 8,22,311 100.00 40.47 5,85,403 87.66 7422

Rohit Khanna - - {100.00) 43,800 6.56 -

Gazal Dhillon - - {100.00} 38,600 5,78 -

Total 8,22,311 100.00 6,67,803 100.00 -




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
" |NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

15 OTHER EQUITY

i. Reservas and § . {INR Lakhs)
Pasticutars i S  |:March 3% 2023
{a) Securities Premium Resarva 2,650.77
{b} Retaned Tamings (1,598.17}
Total 2,052.60
{a] Securities Pramium Reserve i i {INE Lg_k‘hsl i
Particabas i : : ré 4} March31,2023
QOpeninz balanca 3 1,266.71
Addf{Less)
Fresh issue of equity sharas 1,384.06
Closing balance 2,650.77
{INR Lakhs)
[ Marchi3z 2023
Opening Jalance {1,083.92)
Net Profit/{Lass) for the year (510.23)
Cther Comprehansive ingome for the year .58
£lesing balance {1,598.17)

Rerained earhings are the profits that the Company has earmned till date, less dwvidends or other distsibutions paid to sharehoiders. Retained garnings ncludes re-measurement loss/{gain} on defined benafit
nfans, net of taxes that will not ba reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss. Retained sarnings is 2 free reserve available to the Company.

if. G er Compreheansive income (INR Lakﬁ;_ .
Pal Marchi 312023
Qpening Bziance -
Movamaent during the year 292
Less: Trarsfarred to retained sarming 0.98
Toral
[Totat Other Eoul 1,052.60 |
16 BORROWINGS INR Lakhs}
Partiufal i ar 4 Marchi31;2023
Non Cureent Borrowings
Secured
Term Loans
From Banks 1093.64
Total 79 1,093.64

Nan Current Borrowing refarred above are secured by exclusive charge on mavabie and immovable fixed assets, exclusive charge on 3 current assets of the Company situated at Greater Noida, both
prasent & funture and corporate guaranzes of TCPL Packaging Ltd. except vehicie loan of 8s. 58 Lakhs [ Previous year - NIL} which is sacured against specific assets.

- Maturity Profile of Secured Term Loans are zet out below: (INR Lakhs)
Particuiars interest Rate Maturity Profile Non Current Current
Range 1-5 years 610 years Tatal 1year
Rupee Term Loan - From Banks/Fl 8.63% - 10.25% p.a. 819,31 108,28 §27.79 265.00
R §13.52 108.28 92178 265.00
[INR Lakhs)
Marchi31: 2073
indusind bank Term Loan A7 thiy install tarti
sl Loan From Bank 238,35 8711 147 monthly installement starting from August
2020
ty instaflemn: tarting f
Loan From Bank 78015 257.31 48 menthly installement starting from Ostober
2023
72 iy i ment starti
Losn From Bank 150,88 115,35 menthly installement starting from October
2023
Loan From Bank 145,60 175.00 77 monthly instailement starting from September
2022
Fi:] thiy I tarti
Loan From Bank 28.95 4715 monthly installement starting from September
- 2022
62 | i st
Loan Erom Sank 15471 19782 82 monthly installement starting from September
2022
75 hby i £ i Y
Loan From Bank 132.42 1602970 manthly instaliement starting from September |
2022
22 Ry i i mber
Loan From Bank 1455 73.27 manthly instailement starting from Septembe:
2027 .
Loan From Bank - 37.13145 monthly installments starting from June 2020 '
3 - -
Loan From Bank A 1108 12 monthly installments starting from September
2022
Loan Fraen Sank 15,62 } 47 monthly instalfement starticg from October
2023
HDFEC Bank Term Loan Loan From Bank 47.09 - {80 monthly instalement starting from April 2023
Total 119279 1,385.58
17 LEASE LABIITIES {INR Lakhs)
[Partical March32,2023
Non Current
Financial Liabifities at smortised cost
Addition .
Finance cost for the period .
Repaymen: B
Net -
tess Currant pertion .

IR Lakhs}
i March 313023

Non Carrznt
Provis on for employee benafits
Gratuity
Leave encashment

32.17
7.86

Total

e =y
LT




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES YO THE FENANCGIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024
15 Daterrea fax Usbilitios
£ Defarred tax rolutes o the foliowing Lk Lok}
e s Ot - - — g T T March 3L, 2024 ] Warh 3t 2673
Deferred Tax Labiiitios: o
Doprcinnn on Property , PAant, SREEmER nd GLInGHS RO T 195,65
Right of s S55es DS B .
eubtorst {s) ) 14363
[Defrerod Tas acsees:
Lt ety 5o okin e N MRPAT Gl Py 1985
Leate Lasitas L aT
Prvesen tor Souttiul decdn o
S custrty Cepind Lo
Sutotal {03 =
Nt Deterred Tax fakidition] {a-b} L5151
U Whcrsement in celered tes hasdliti, N3 tais) |
AsrVRch 3L | Crasgadiicreditos} Changedyl Ao we Marck X, - {Charged]/ As at barch
Particutars {eredited) o ) .
g i 31,2078
2032 o Prafitandioss | credined wO i Drofit and ong, | TOCEEED 0K
[oxtarved Tax tabltrs:
Depragiation on Property  ctanteauizmant Fats 6757 &7 - 1285 35,09, . 55,61
gt of use Aerets . . . - 13561
Subtoeal s} €7.97 0,72 . 22537 . 285.21
Crterrer Tax Assve:
Emctavess benelits and olhet et wroer o ST BT b33 CE To40iE ) ooy 538
Ldnie LTI - - i 200.73
B2 ariion foo Deubsder geons 133 T 157 254
Sy genent N - Ot 2 5,285 4.28]
Sutgetal fa) 32,54 (3,854 [ 1,29 {209.54)F 00X 2370
s Defarred Tax (Liabitrdes} bl 5543 72571 2oy ik 50 e @03 63 53
] Effeciive tax rezondistion :
Frofit betors tae T (esesE) 2
T gl i St SRRV T At €8 25.045% 112953
AT USTTOnt in tan eYgenir o
Tl it o petmanent doskiw e ot expense R -+
[heartind 16 ROT MCofotind dhar b2 fack 6F ragsiebie ceatanty g 13996
Detorrid 13 bataliy ar Seamehiol B Fverzad BUTHE 10 yodt 8554 .
Tt * pasted on s § the yeur s 27.35
neny 3% FERT)
£Hiccuva tac sipenic e X 7757
20 DTHER 50K CURGENT LLASIUIES ONR takis)
Prrtledan o — 3 B YT T Y T T
Koo Curent ¥
Seturey Sepasts ko S1H kot mzats ) 286
Tetai 285, B
22 BORROWINGS NS Lakns)
[ Pariidazs i - B TAarch 31, 2026 | Biarch 31, 2023
Currant Sarrswings B
Seeured
L3S ety S 3N Anans
- Fram Juaks L S0 G55 25
Cement Maturity of Long Tent: Barroudngs
Farenieian
Frum 5 26500 25152
tatsl L0530 ESET)
Currant Geourind Brfoawg (oferad Sae 670 03T Dy BACKIeR CRATEN OF Ml 40 IRaovabis laoe 14506t , ST CAUTEE BT B8 Goeeart 394Te O (e Comapany eater feuida, botn
prisent & futore and corplrate guarante of TEPL Patkagmy itd.
MIaturey Frafie of Seosied Working Capital tadat e st oul peliw JMR Ll
Wavurry Srofile | March3L 207e | March 35 303
fage
Hitoee st 105 533K 531 b Ceund Tsa50 3555
7850 £%.35
12 TRADE PAYABLES fNR L s
sttt . — _ Riadch T1 2004 § March 33 2023
Curzent
Traide Payablis tir Mt snd §mait£a frurn Yentsen 238 251
Tead Fayabio to PAher 6L §16.42
Tond? Tnss F56.53
“Refer £o%e 1. 38 Jor sgeing of wade aeyables.
13 GTHIR FNANGIAL UABIITIES Qi agh)
Current
S0ty degon 26500 .
Credaan 2 RESE 5459
Dize to Emplayeen s Ta.dz
Dariedng k2 4059 $6.39
Tewl [eY) 19740
24 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES SR Lz
kLl
PRtk March 31,7623 | March 31, 2073
Lwrret
AGVante tecanesd fom Custamity 050 473
Gther Advsnies 200 000
Sa3tstary Land m 180
* - 5707
Tomt aco S547
25 PROSICNS - CURRENT Arif Lok
Feriian LT
Merch 35 26002 § dgpeh 31 2003
Coerent —
Purryman f24 e Dot
212 18!
e eniyiimont o3 G
Yot E¥2) 235




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

26 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS . [INR Lakhs)
Sale of products 3,288.37
Conversion Charges 438.39
Gther Operating Ravenues 77.15

3,414.91

(3} The above revenues have been recongnised at point of time.

(b} Payment terms with customers generally ranges between 0 to 60 days from the completion of performance
abligation. Considering the same, the Company elects to use practical expedient as given in IND AS 115 "Revenue
from contracts with customers”, hence there are no significant financing componest in any transaction with the
customers,

(c) Disseggregation of revenue based on primary geographical market: {INR Lakhs)

2

India 3,5975.54 3,414.91
autside India -
yal 3,4i4.91
(d} For contract assets and balances Refer note no. 9.
27 OTHER INCOME {INR Lakhs}
02
Interest income on
Bank fixed deposits 0.34
On income Tax Refund -
Cthers 1.72
Other Non Operating Income
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets 1.39
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain 2.30
Sundry Balances Written back 1.75
5.50
28 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Stock at beginning of the year
Add: Purchases 2,137.36
Less : Stock at end of the year {355.69}
2,036.93
29 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRAD INR Lakhs)
B 23 24 20223
Inventories as at the beginning of the year
Work - in - progress 98.95
Finished goods 101.77
200.72
Less : Inventories as at the end of the year
Work - in - progress 111.87
Finished goods 161.16
273.03
Net decrease / {increase} in inventories {72.31)
30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT! (INR Lakhs)

4l

Szlaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff weifare expenses




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMHTED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

31 FINANCE COST {INR 1akhs}
Particulars -7 2022-23
interest expense on debts and borrowings 171.81
interest on tease liabilities -
interest on Statutory Dues -
Corporate Guarantee Commission 6.35
Sther borrowing costs 18.29
196.45
32 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE {INR Lakhs}
Particulars -1 T 202223
Depraciztion on Property, Plant and Eguipment 18470
Amortisation on intangible assets 1.32
Depreciation on Leased assets ; : 3.06
T 26233 185.08
33 OTHER EXPENSES {INR Eakhs)
Partleulars 0 = M
Manufacturing Expenses
Carriage Inward 40.73
Labour charges 355.72
Eiaetric power, fuei and water 10482
Repairs and maintenance
Facrory Bullding -
Plant and Machinery 25.84
Othars 15.64
Stores, consumables and packing material 17899
721.74
Selling, Administration and Other Expenses B
Payments to auditors {Refer note {a}below} L1016 6.88
Rates & Taxes 12,92 -
Sank Charges 580
Commissicn £.29
Provision for doubrful debts LT 9.76
Carriage Outward 108 57.43
insurance 813 1358
Legai and professional fees - 1981 2z2.64
Sales promotion expenses R 1 %13 0.39
Telephone and internet expensas L 281 10.24
Traveling & conveyence expensas i 2217 18.81
Saddebts s 283 -
Less: Reveral of provision for ECL o {2.53) -
hliscellanecus expenses 4251 38.45
toss on disposal of property, plant and equipment/Discardad : 6.34 .14
2 219,45 182.05
-1,878.78 903.83
{a) Details of Payments to auditors {iNR Lakhs)
Particulars S C 202324 202233
As auditor B
Audit Fee £.00 6.00
Tax zudit fes 1.50 1.50
Limited review fee 225 2.25
In other tapacity
Re-imbursement of expenses © 0.41 0.13
10).}6 2.88




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{INR in Lakhs except EPS] |

(a) Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to the eguity shareholders of the company , in INR

{b) Dilluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to the aqguity shareholiders of the company, in INR

(c} Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the company used in calculating basic earnings
per share

Dilluted earnings per share
Profit from operations attributable t¢ the sguity shareholders of the company
Used in caiculating basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating difluted earnings per
share

{d} Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

Opening number of equity shares

Issued during the year

Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating basic earnings
per share

(98.68)

{98.68)

(98.68)

{98.68)

{510.23}

(510.23)

{510.23}

(510.23)

4,18,405
2,459,398

5,17,046

5,17,046




* 7. |CREATIVE OFESET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024
i. Name & Relationshiop of the related parties:
b3t ; FTEPL Packaging Fimited:
¥ey Management Parsonnel [KMP) Mr. Saket Kanoria {Director)
Mr. Akshay Kaneris (Dirsctor)
e, Rohit Xhanna {Managing Director)
hir. Sohen Nanavati {Director)
Mr. LX Vijayvargiva (Diractor}
Enterprise over which KMP and their relatives is | carma Internations] India Private Limitad
having significant influence Creative Inforanhics Private Limived
Rejative of Key Management Personnel Poonam Khannz
it Transactions with related parties during the year ___{iNRin Lakhs)
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars Enterprise over
Key . Enterprise over which . which
Relat f Ke N
Patent Management Relatives of ey KMP and their Kay Management <-atives of Key KMP and their
Management N . _ Parent Company . Management .
Lompany Perspnnel Personnt relatives can exercise Persannel {XMp) personnel relatives
{KMP) significant influence ¢an exerdise
significant influence
tease Rent Payabie
TCPL Packaging Limited 23.07 - - - - - - -
Security deposit against Supply
TCPL Packaging Limited 185.00 - - - - - - -
interest Paid/Payable
TCPL Packaging Limited 7.38 - - - - - - -
loan repaid
Carma tnternational india Privete Limited - - - - - - - 237.05
Creative infographics Private Limited - - - - - ~ - 10.00
Poonam Khanna - - - - - - 20.00
Gazai Ohillon - - - - - 10,00 - -
R Corporate Guarantes given on behalf of the Comp ¥ by
TCPL Packaging Limited i 193128 - - - 2,085.47 - - -
Carporate Guarantee Commission Paid
TCPL Packaging Limited §.42 - - - 5.35 - - -
Property, Plant and Equipment purchased
TCPL Packaging Limited 44.83 - - - 5.00 - - -
Property, Plant and Equip sofd
TCPL Packaging Limited 0.46 - - - - N - -
Interest Paid
Carma international India Private Limitad - - - - - - - 1503
Creative infographics Private Limited - - - - - - - 0.74
Gazal Dhiflen - - - - - 0.74 -
Foonam Khanna - - - - - - 1.43 R
Share Capital Received
TCPL Packeging Limited - Share Capital 1545 - - - 2494 - - -
TCPL. Packaging Limited - Security Premium 791.52 - - - 1,384.06 - - -
Payment made on behalf of company
TCPL Packaging Limited - - - - 57,07 - - -
Material Purchased/lob Work
TCPL Packaging Limited (Haridwar) 172.27 - - - 86,79 - R -
TCPL Packaging Limited {Daman) 6.58 - - - 1.43 - - B
TCPL Packaging Limited (Goa) 0.067 - - - 13.15 - - -
Material Sold/lob Work
TCPL Packaging Limited {Haridwar} £5.80 - - - 30481 - - -
TCPL Packaging Limited {Goa) 0.27 - - - 7.85 - - -
TCPL Packaging Limited (Daman) 112 - - - 12.20 - - -
il ion and other perquisites to Company’s KMPs®
Reohit Khanna i - 50.55 N L - &0.00 T B
* The above remuneration is excluding provision for Gratuity based on acturial valuation done at year end,




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{ii} Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods and services & capital goods

{Rs in Lakhs)
Name o002yt i March 312024770 March 3%,2023
Payables-
TCPL Packaging Lid (Daman & Diu) 43.93 0.00
TCPL Packaging Lid (Haridwar) 144.65 0.30
TCPL Packaging Ltd {Mumbai} 13.04 1.95
TCPL Packaging Ltd {Goa) 41.34 0.00
Total, -5l T e T2ati00 T2.08
Qutstanding security deposit payable -
TCPL Packaging Ltd {Haridwar) 165.00 -
Total | o T Rl 1T i e R T
{Rs in Lakhs}
{iv} Loans to/from related parties .. - S TR T
S, - Name . Nature of Relationship "' :YearEnded . -

Loans from related parties . . -

S March 31,2024 March 31,2023

Rehit Khanna

Carma Internationat India Private Limited

Gazai Dhillon

Creative infographics Private Limited

Paonam Khanna

Beginning of the year

Loans taken
Loan repaid

Interest charged & Paid

£nd of the year

Beginning of the year
Loans taken

Loan repaid

Interest charged

End of the year

Beginning of the year
Leans taken

Loan repaid

Interest charged

End of the year

Beginning of the year
Loans taken

Loan repaid

Interest chargad

End of the year

Beginning of the year
Loans taken

Loar repaid

Interest charged

End of the year

252.68

- 268.71
- 16.03
- 10.51
- 11.25
- 2.74
1051

- 11.25
- .74
- 20.81

- 22.24
- 1.43
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36. Employee Benefits: 0

The expenses of monthly salary, allowances and perquisite values have been charged to statement of profit and Loss for the respective
period . Further following benefit also accrue to the empioyees,

The company has following benefits pian for the employees:

&  Provident fund: Provident fund is a defined contribution plan in which the company contributes to the provident fund of the
employee with the Government Provident Fund Trust. Apart from contributing there is no further obligation on the company.During the
year, the company has recognised Rs. 41.93 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 32.35 Lakhs) as contribution to employee provident fund in
Statement of Profit & Loss. :

b. Gratuity: The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continucus service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the
empioyees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service,
The gratuity pian is 2 funded plan and the Company makes contributions to recognised funds in India. The folowing table shows the
expense and liability of funded gratuity Habilities:

{GRATUITY (UNFUNDED) Ry
{Rs in Lakhs)
i}  Amount Recognized in the Balance Sheet March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Present value of funded defined henefit obligation 42.74 34.03
Net funding obligations 42.74 34.03
#)  Amount Recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss LU 2023-240 200223
Current service cost 7.40 5.70
Net interest on net defined benefit liability / asset 2.53 2.38
Amount recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss 5.93 3.08
i} Amount Recorded in Other Comprehensive Income L 2023-247 0 0202223
Actuarial {loss) / Gain from change in financiai assumptions 0.11 0.57
Actuarial {loss) / Gain from experience - 6.81
Amount recognised in 0C1 6.11 1.38
W} Movement of defined Benefits Obligations 2023247 0] 202223
Present value of abligation at beginning of the year 34.03 33.07
Interest cost 2.53 2.38
Current service cost 7.40 5.70
Benefits paid {1.11) {5.74)
Actuarial {gains} / losses on obligation {0.11) {1.38)
Present value of obligation at the end of year 42.74 34903
viit) Principal actuarial assumptions
Biscount rate 7.25% 7.50%
Expected rate of return on Plan assets - -
Salary Escalation Rate 5.00% 5.00%
ix} Sensitivity Analysis S March 3L 2024 00 March 31,2023
Increase {%) | ° Decrease (%) Increase (%) | Decrease {%)
Change in Salary growth rate by 1% ( Delta impact of 1 % +/-) 11.06 5.00 7.00 6.00
Change in Discount Rate by 1% { Delta impact of 1 % +/-} 9.00 11.00 8.00 8.00
Change in Withdrawai rate by 1% ( Delta impact of 1 % +/-) 2.00 2.00 1.00 1.00

refevant factors such as supply and demang in the empioyment market.

The Company plans to contribute in next year requisite amount to its Gratuity plan.
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account

of inflation, seniority, promotion and other




CREATIVE OFFSET PRINTERS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

{Rs in t.akhs)

37. FINANCIAL RISKMANAGEMENT .0 -0 L o )
|{a) Expected credit oss for trade receivables. < <

fesiE T | Notdue 0380 days  181-360cays  361-540days | above 540 days - Total
Imarch 31, 2024

Gross Carrying amount (Undisputed} 285.45 258517 77.01 0.31 7.23 665.16
Expected loss rate {%) G.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 100.00%

Expected credit foss {Loss aliowance provision) - - - - 7.23 7.23
Carrying amount of trade receivables {net of impairment) 285.45 295.17 7.8} 0.31 - 657.93
iMarch 31, 2023

Gross Carrying amount {Undisputed) 332.32 136.93 5.18 7.73 - 482.17
Expected loss rate {%) 0.00% 0.00% 35.15% 1C0.60% -

Expected credit loss {Loss aliowance provision) - - 2.03 7.73 - 9.76
Carrying amount of trade receivables {net of impairment} 332.31 136.95 3.15 - B 472.41

{B) Liguidity risk
fPruc:‘en*z liquidity risk management imglies maintaining sufficient ¢cash and bank balance and the availabifity of funding through an adeguate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet chligations when due . Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining avaitability under
committed credit tines. :

Management monitors rolfing forecasts of the company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities} and cash and cash equivalents on the basis o]
expected cash flows. In addition, the company’s fiquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the tevel of liquid assets necessary to meet
these against internal and external regulatory requiremants and maintaining debt financing plans.

{i} Financing arrangements

The company had acgess to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting year:

{INR Lakhs}
Particulars . . LT P T T e .--:'--!Ma'r'chf31,-2024:!mrdi3z,2023
‘Sanction limit of (bank overdraft and other facilities) 900.00 700.00
Director
- Expiring within one vear {bank overdraft and other facilities) 744.50 592.89
- Expiring beyond one year (other facilities) - -
Undrawn borrowing facifities at the end of tha reporting year 155.50 0.11

ﬁtii] Maturities of Financiaf Liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company's financial fizbilities into relevant maturity groupings based on thelr contractual maturities for:

Maturity profile of the financial liabilities as on March 31, 2024 ) {Rs in Lakhs)
Particutdrs’ " LT SRR s e Uptolyear . -L5years - More than Syears - Totaf -
Long Term Borrowings 265.00 819.51 108.28 1,192,779
Shart term Borrowings 744.50 - - 744,50
Trade Payabies 718.86 - - 718.86
{.ease Libilities 134.45 852.04 - 986.53
Cther Payables - - - -
Total 1,862.85 1,671.55 108.28 3,642.68
Maturity profile of the financial habilities as on March 31, 2023
|particatars ™ o h o : Upto 1 year’ 1-5years - MorethanSvyears Total
Long Term Borrowings 291,94 838.42 205.23 1,385.59
Short term Borrowings £959.29 - - £99.89
Trade Payables 456,53 - - 456.93
Lease Libilities - - - .
Other Payabies 54.59 - - 54.59
Totat 1,503.35 888.42 205.23 2,597.00

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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38.Trade payable Ageing Schedule;.

(Rs In Lakhs)

Pafti.f;ulars'-': R S Outstandmg for fo!lowmg penods from due date of payment EE R
s Lessthani year . 12 Years . 'i2-3yeafs . .Morethan3 Years -Total Do
As at March 31, 2024

MSME 27.49 - - - 27.49
Others 676.48 676.48
bisputed dues - MSME 14.89 - - - 14.8%
Disputed duses - Others - - - - -
Grand Total 718.86 - - - 718.86
As at March 31, 2023

MSME 40.51 - - - 40.51
Others 413.35 2.89 0.18 - 416.42
Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
jGrand Total 453.86 2.89 0.18 - 456.93
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{Rs in Lakhs)
39, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT. i TR

For the purpose of the company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves!
attributable to the equity holders . The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
Hinancial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital]
plus net debt. The company includes within debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, less cash and cash
equivalents, excluding discontinued operations.

S March 31,2024 0 "March 31,2023
Borrowings 1,937.2¢% 2,085.47
Less: cash and cash equivalents {3.52) {3.77}
jNet Debt 1,933.77 - 2,081.70
Convertibie preference shares - -
Eguity 1,444.98 1,119.38
Total Capital 1,444.98 1,119.38
Capital and net debt 3,378.75 3,201.08
Gearing ratio i.34:1 1.86:1

in order to achieve this overali objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to snsure that it meets financial]
covenants attached to the borrowings that define capital structure requirements as follows.

-Optimal use of avaialble capital
- Leverage optimally in order to maximize shareholder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of the Balance sheet.
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49, Ratios

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

The major financial ratios of the company computed as per the financial statement prepared under indAs are disclosed below along with reasons for the variance.

S0 [ T Formda L Rake 107 Numeratar . | Denominator . < | Current Perlod: | Previous Perlod | % of Variance
1 iCurrent Assets / Current Liabilities  |Current Ratio Current Assets Current Uabilities .65 0.71 {2.25)
Total debt / Shareholdar's Equity Debt equity ratio Total Dabt Shareholder’s Equity 1.34 1.86 (28.04)
Earni Hable .
3 [Earnings available for debt service / [ Debt -service coverage ratio d:;?llg{i::a} abie for Debz Service .01 {0.08} {110.68)
Net Profits after taxes - Preference Net Profits after
4 |[Dividend (if any) / Avg. Return on equity ratio raxes — Preference Avg. Shareholder’s Equity (0.38) {0.76) (50.72)
Sharehgider’s Equity Dividand [if any)
5 Cost of goads sold or saies / Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goads sold or Avg.lnventory 2.97 3.63 (28.11)
Avg.Inventory saleg
Earning before interest and taxes / . Earning before .
o, Capital Emiployed 0.1 0.07 .
& Capital Emgployed Return on Capitat employe interest and taxes apital Employe 0.10) { } 31.86
N i . A .
7 R::;iZﬁ:;Sﬁes { fuig. Accounts Trade receivable turnover ratio | Net Credit Sales Avg. Accounts Receivable 7.03 7.58 {7.35)
it P Avg. T
8 P::;acl;j:“ urchases / Avg. Trade Trade payable turnover ratio Net Credit purchases | Avg. Trade Payables 4.02 3.14 27.83
S iNet Sales [ Working Capital Net capital turnover ratio Net Sales Working Capital {(5.76) (6.74) [14.53)
10 iNet Profit / Net Sales N.P. Ratio Net profit Net Sales 0.12) (0.15) (18.93)
11 iReturn on FDR / Average FOR Return on investraents Return of FOR Average FDR 0.07 .04 58.53
Reason for variance more than 25% :
S. Mo BT Farmuls CrRatig o % of Variance - Reason =~
1 iCurrent Assets / Current Liabilities  iCurrent Ratio {2.25)} -
2 {Total debt / Shareholder's Equity Debt equity ratio {28.04)} Repayment of debt resulted in improvement in debt equity ratio
ir ifable # 133 i . . . .
3 ;‘:g:;ii\:::' able for debt service / Oebt - service coverage ratio {110.68) Debt - service coverage ratio has improved mainly on account of decreasing in loss
Net Profits after taxes - Preference
’ 4 |Dividend {if any} / Ave. Return on equity ratio {50.72)1 Return on equity ratic has improved mainly on account of decreasing in joss
Shareholder's Eguity
f ! I
5 Cost of goods sold or sales / inventory turnover ratio {18.23)} -
Avg.inventory
rning before dt
& Ea r‘ung efore interest and taxes / Return on Capital employed. 31.86 | Retun on capital employed ration decreased due o increase in net loss
Capital Employed
Net Credit Sales / Avg. Actounts . .
7 Receivable Trade receivable turnover ratio {7.35}
Net Credit Purchases / Avg. Trad R
8 PavabIeS' urchases / Avg. Trade Trade payable turnover ratio 27.83 | Trade payable turnover ratic has increased due to increase in total purchase made
S |Net Sales / Working Capital Net capital turnover ratio {14.53)} ~
30 iNet Profit / Net Sales N.P. Ratio {18.83} -
11 iReturnon FDR/ Average FDR Return on investments 59.53 | Due to increase in period of fixed deposit holding
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{a) Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital sccount and not provided for:

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

[Estimated value of contracts (net of advances) remaining 10 be
executed on capital account and not provided for.

0.1%

Hb} Contingent Habilities

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Total

[Particulars
Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt
Case of Mr. Prithi Nath Singh under Labour court 26.46 20.80
Case of Mr. Ghanshyam Thakur under Labour court 18.56 14.45
45.02 35.25

elopme pens

The company has incurred Resea
Revenue Expenditure Rs. 101.31 Lakhs
Capital Expenditure Rs, 65.28 Lakhs

rch & Development expense amounting o Rs. 166.59 Lakhs during the year, the details of which are as disclosed -
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42. DETAILS OF DUES TO MICRO AND SMALL ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006 {(MSMED ACT,
(iNR Lakhs)

E o Lo Asatlc o e Asatt o
[Patiadaes o L LR . March 31,2024 | - March 31, 2023
fPr‘mcipai amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006* 42.38 40.51

interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, on the sbove amount - -
Payment made to suppliers ( other than interest ) beyond the appointed day, during the year - -
interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, { other than Section 16} - -
interest paid to suppliers under MSMED Act, { Section 15 ) - -
Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, for payment already made - -
interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006 - -

The information has been given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be identified as "Micro and Smali enterprises on the basis of information availablel

with the Company.

43, Leases
Company as a lessee

restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets.

assats’ recognition exemptions for these feases,

short-term leases in current period and 5.38 lakh in previous year,

Set cut below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

{iit} There are no variable lease payments for the period ended March 33, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

The Company has lease contracts for a building and = plant and equipment used in its operations. Lease of building has a lease term of 3 years and lease of plant and
equipment has a lease term of 5 years. The Company's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. Generaily, the Company ig]

The Company alsc has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and with low vaiue. The Company applies the short-term lease’ and ‘lease of low-valuel

{1} The Company recognizes the expenses of short-term and low value leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. There was expenses of Rs. 8.08 lakh related to

{i}} There are no income from subleasing right-of-use assets nor any gains or losses from sales and leaseback for the year ended March 31, 2024, (Previous year Nil}

SRR For the year ending | For the year ending
jParticulars - March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
Additions 809.1% -
Accretion of interest 16.57 -
Payments (28.28) -
Closing batance 797.48 -
Current 7150 -
Non-turrent 725.98 -
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:
!??’."_‘i'_c."*_.’.?."s_._. S e : B M wAsat _ Lo Asat
R arch 31, 2024 -1 - March 31, 2023
On Demangd . -
Upto 1 year 71.50 -
More than 1 year 72598 -
Total 797.48 -
The effective interest rate for fease lisbilities is 8.25%.
The foliowing are the amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss: Director
IPartic_u_I_a_rs' : ' ' S As at R Asat
March 31, 2028 Mareh 31, 2023
§Depreciatian expense of right-of-use assets 42.70 3.06
Interest expense on lease liabilities 16.57 -
Total 59.27 3.06

Total cash outflow on leases for the year ended March 31, 2024 i5 £ 11.71 takhs (Previous year : NiL)
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44, According to ind AS 108, identification of operating segments is based on Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) approach for making decisions about allozating
resources tc the segment and assessing its performance. The business activity of the company falis within one business segment viz. “manufacturing of packaging
goods” within the country. Hence, the disclosure requirement of ind AS 108 of ‘Segment Reporting’ is not considered applicable.

45. Disclosures under other regulatory requirements
(1) The company does not have any charges or satisfactions yet to be registered with the registrar of the companies beyond the statutory period.

{ii} There are no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Properties
Transactions Act, 1588 and rules made thereunder.

{iii} The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other Lender.

{iv) The Company has no transaction and/for sutstanding balance with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or secticn 560 of tha
Companies Act, 1956 as identified to the extent of struck off companies details available on the public domain.

{v} The Company has not traded or invested in Crypie currency or Virtua! Currency during the financial year.

{vi} The Company has no subsidiary, therefore clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Restriction on number of Layers) Rules. 2017
is not applicable on the Company,

(vit) The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assesstnents under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey of any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961},

(vili} During the year ended March 31, 2024, other than the transactions undertaken in the aormal course of business and in accordance with extant regulatory
guidelines as applicable.

(i} No funds (which are materia!l either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premiur: or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“latermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recerded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i} No funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
{“Funding Parties”}, with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in othe-
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by ar on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Baneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or thz like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{(ix) The Company is not a Core Investment Company {CIC) as definad in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of india. The Group has no GC as part of the Srous.

{x) The provisions of corporate social responsibilties under section $35 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company during the year.

45: Previous years figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever nacessary.
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